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Las Vegas, Nevada, Tuesday, February 13, 2018 
 

[Case called at 10:13 a.m.] 

THE COURT:  St. Paul Fire & marine v Aspen Specialty 

Insurance. 

We'll take appearances and then we have a number --  

MR. MORALES:  Good morning, Your Honor.  It’s number 18 --  

THE COURT:  -- of motions. 

MR. MORALES:  Page 18.  Rami Morales, counsel for St. Paul, 

7141 -- excuse me.  I have a little bit of a cold. 

THE COURT:  We all do. 

MR. SALERNO:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Nick Salerno for 

Defendants. 

THE COURT:  Notify. 

MR. SALERNO:  I have with me counsel who has applied pro 

hac vice to associate, Steven Aaronoff, and --   

THE COURT:  That seems like probably the first place we want 

to start. 

MR. SALERNO:  That's what I was going to suggest.  Thank 

you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  So you've got some additional counsel with you, 

so if you have anybody else to introduce as counsel. 

Hi, Mr. Edwards. 

MR. EDWARDS:  Mike Edwards on behalf of Defendant 

Aspen --  

THE COURT:  Aspen. 
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MR. EDWARDS:  -- Specialty Insurance Company. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Edwards. 

Okay.  Mr. Edwards, do you take any position on any of these 

motions? 

MR. EDWARDS:  Not today. 

THE COURT:  Okay, great.  Okay, so for today we just don't 

have to keep calling on you?  Thank you, sir. 

All right.  So it looks like the first thing obviously would be the 

motions to associate counsel. 

I saw no opposition.  They appeared, Mr. Morales, to meet the 

statutory --  

MR. MORALES:  No, no opposition. 

THE COURT:  -- requirements for association of counsel.  So 

we'll grant those. 

I would say, Mr. Salerno, that for court appearances and trial, 

we do request under the local rule that local counsel also be present.  

Whatever you guys do in the course of your discovery, anything, I don't 

care.  I mean, whoever shows up shows up.  They're admitted pro hac 

vice, it's perfectly fine.  The only requirement is that we have local 

counsel in court. 

MR. SALERNO:  Great to know.  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  And so you have orders for us to process? 

MR. SALERNO:  I do. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. SALERNO:  And I have another housekeeping on the 

AA000400
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motion to seal Exhibit A. 

THE COURT:  That's number two. 

MR. SALERNO:  That's unopposed as well. 

THE COURT:  That's our second issue.   

What all were you looking to have sealed?  Were we sealing the 

numbers of the settlement or the policy limits? 

MR. SALERNO:  This Exhibit A is the Nightclub Management 

Agreement and we sealed it as an abundance of precaution because the 

parties to the underlying action considered it propriety and they sealed it.  

So that was the only reason. 

THE COURT:  And so --  

MR. SALERNO:  So it's the filing of the Nightclub Management 

Agreement. 

THE COURT:  So then with respect to, though, to the actual 

policy limits that were in place and who paid what in the settlement 

agreement, because I thought the settlement agreement was also 

confidential. 

MR. SALERNO:  That part has been redacted from the 

Complaint --  

MR. MORALES:  Your Honor, the amount of the underlying 

settlement is confidential. 

THE COURT:  But not the amounts of the policy limits? 

MR. MORALES:  No. 

THE COURT:  Okay, understood.  Thanks.  All right, great.   

So based on that then, sir, we’ll submit an order indicating that 

AA000401
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we are sealing the management agreement, that the terms of the 

settlement agreement should be sealed or redacted from any future 

pleadings but that the amounts of the insurance policies that are at issue 

in this coverage litigation, those can be -- they're public. 

MR. SALERNO:  There is no motion to seal the confidential 

settlement agreement amount. 

THE COURT:  I think we did that earlier. 

MR. MORALES:  We did that earlier. 

MR. SALERNO:  Did you?  Okay.  So --  

THE COURT:  Yeah.  I think we did that, it was like the first 

thing. 

MR. MORALES:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  I think the Complaint was filed and then --  

MR. MORALES:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  -- there was a request to seal the --  

MR. MORALES:  That's correct, Your Honor.  That's right. 

THE COURT:  -- settlement agreement.   

So we won't talk about the number, but policy limits we can talk 

about.  So I want to make it --  

MR. SALERNO:  Fair enough. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Is that -- is everybody agreed --  

MR. MORALES:  That's correct. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  -- that that's the agreement?  Okay. 

MR. SALERNO:  And Ms. Keller, I apologize, Your Honor, she's 
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in trial in California right now, --  

THE COURT:  Understood. 

MR. SALERNO:  -- who will take the lead as out-of-state 

counsel.  She couldn't be here today.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  We'll look forward to seeing her in the 

future. 

MR. SALERNO:  May I approach with the orders? 

THE COURT:  You may. 

And then are you just going to write a different order on the -- or 

do you --  

MR. SALERNO:  So there's two.  There's one for Mr. Aaronoff 

and one for Ms. Keller. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And then there's --  

MR. SALERNO:  And then there's one for the Exhibit A. 

THE COURT:  The Exhibit A, okay.  Great.  We'll get these 

processed and we'll notify your office. 

MR. SALERNO:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

Okay.  So we have a motion to dismiss and we have a 

countermotion so.  

MR. SALERNO:  What I'd ask, Your Honor, if we could as a 

housekeeping matter have Mr. Aaronoff address the motion to dismiss on 

behalf of Roof Deck, who we refer to as Marquee, and that I would argue 

the motion on behalf of National Union if Your Honor's okay with that. 

THE COURT:  Got it.  It's okay. 
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MR. SALERNO:  And we'll start, if Your Honor doesn't mind, 

then with the Marquee motion.  Thank you. 

MR. AARONOFF:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

Your Honor, do you prefer counsel to address the Court 

standing or sitting? 

THE COURT:  Whatever is comfortable for you works, I'm fine 

with it, or you can stand at the podium.  Whatever you prefer. 

MR. AARONOFF:  I think I'll sit today.  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  Okay, sit down.  Thanks.  Thanks for asking. 

MR. AARONOFF:  Thank you. 

Your Honor, the first issue with respect to the motion by 

Marquee, also known as Roof Deck, pertains to the document known as 

the Nightclub Management Agreement, which I'll call the MNA if that's 

okay.  We feel very strongly that the Court needs to consider this 

document with respect to the motion to dismiss. 

For one thing, it's referred to expressly in Plaintiff's Complaint at 

paragraph 86.  In fact, it's the factual basis for the express indemnity 

claim brought by the Plaintiff against Marquee. 

THE COURT:  Counsel, can I ask because there are lengthy 

quotes from the Nightclub Agreement in the body of the pleading, were 

those to be redacted or is that accepted okay?  It's just that the entire 

document was what they consider private --  

MR. SALERNO:  There are other -- the attachments and things 

of that nature that are more proprietary to the runnings of the club. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So the indemnity and insurance portions 
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that are quoted here, paragraphs 12, they're okay to be cited? 

MR. MORALES:  That's fine, Your Honor. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Because we don't want to offend the 

party whose actual agreement it is, so thanks.  Okay, I appreciate that. 

MR. SALERNO:  We appreciate that, Your Honor.  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. AARONOFF:  Thanks very much for that, for noting that, 

Your Honor. 

Why this is critical, because we believe that the NMA 

establishes two distinct legal defenses in favor of Marquee as a 

Defendant on these particular claims and if I can note for the record and 

for the Court's attention certain crucial language at page 63 of the NMA.  

This is -- let me start first with what has been referred to in the briefing as 

the Waiver of Subrogation Provision, and that's, just for reference, 

paragraph 12.2.6.  It's our position that this portion of the agreement 

between Marquee and Cosmopolitan demonstrates --  

MR. MORALES:  Your Honor, I'm going to object.  The 

agreement is not between Marquee and Cosmopolitan.  If you look at the 

first page, it is between Marquee and Nevada Restaurant Group. 

THE COURT:  Understood. 

MR. AARONOFF:  Point taken.   

But for all intents and purposes, Your Honor, I think they're 

synonymous in terms of the functioning of --  

MR. MORALES:  Your Honor, --  
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THE COURT:  Yeah, well, you'll get an opportunity, so let's just 

hear his argument.  Thanks. 

MR. SALERNO:  At any rate, it's the operative agreement, but 

let me move on from there. 

The clause that we're talking about demonstrates that the two 

insureds here decided to forego subrogation claims and made a decision 

to require each other to have certain provisions in their respective 

policies.  We've cited copious case law to the Court that this sort of a 

provision is enforced all the time and it has a preclusive effect on the 

Plaintiff's claim, their primary claim, and, in fact, their secondary claim for 

contribution against Marquee.  So that's number one. 

Number two is a different legal defense rising from the operative 

agreement.  And that is in a neighboring paragraph which is also on page 

63 but washes over onto 64, that is 13.1.  The key here is language that 

is in the middle of the paragraph, which discusses under what 

circumstances the operator should indemnify, hold harmless, and defend 

the owner.  And the language I'm talking about is:  And not otherwise 

covered by the insurance required to be maintained hereunder. 

Why this is significant, Your Honor, there can be no dispute that 

in this matter the owner, which is the hotel entities, did not pay money out 

of its own pocket.  So in our view this forecloses the ability to bring the 

express indemnity claim, which is, I believe, the third cause of action in 

the Operative Complaint here.  And also we believe would similarly 

disable the other purported cause of action against Marquee, which 

sounds in contribution.  And the Court may recall from our briefing that 
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there are other arguments that we have made regarding the contrast 

between indemnity and contribution, which I can go into if the Court 

would like amplification on that.  But, fairly simply, the statute itself 

indicates that you don't get to have it both ways.  In other words, there is 

an effect by bringing -- by attempting to bring an indemnity claim and you 

don't get to go with the other type of claim. 

The second major problem.  The -- Marquee and Cosmopolitan, 

as you know, this went to a judgment.  There was a finding of liability 

against the Cosmopolitan.  That, in and of itself, under Nevada law would 

prevent that party from asserting --  

THE COURT:  Did the Court rule that as a matter of law or was 

that a finding on on a special verdict form by the jury?  Who made that 

determination?  I'm assuming it was the Court. 

MR. AARONOFF:  The verdict was determined -- the jury 

determined that, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So it wasn't the Court determining it as a 

matter of law? 

MR. AARONOFF:  To the best of my knowledge, no. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. AARONOFF:  This went the distance, as it were. 

THE COURT:  This was jury verdict, okay, got it.  All right. 

MR. AARONOFF:  So that in a nutshell is what we're arguing 

here today, Your Honor.  There is an extra issue, which if we get there, 

involves attorney's fees. 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 
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MR. AARONOFF:  And, at any rate, we've asserted that in the 

briefing and if things go well, we'll assert it again. 

THE COURT:  I had a question about all these corporate 

names, who's on first, who's who.  As I understand it, your client's policy 

was to Nightclub Management Group, something like that, which is the, I 

think, the parent company of all these Tao, all those different entities.  

And it indicated that any 50-percent owned subsidiary or after-acquired 

subsidiary, anything that they owned 50 percent of would be considered 

to be an insured.  So we don't have any issues there regarding who the 

insureds were meant to be under the policy and that those were, in fact, 

parties to the settlement and the subsequent coverage litigation.  I mean, 

you could trace that from the parent through -- because, as it was pointed 

out, there are all these initials and names.  I think this -- we had Roof 

Deck and then there was -- I think the NVPD 1, because Cosmo has a 

very odd corporate name.  Deutsche Bank came up with some weird 

corporate name, like Nevada 1, or something.  It's a very unusual --  

MR. SALERNO:  Similar to that. 

MR. MORALES:  Nevada Properties 1, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Nevada Properties 1, yeah. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yeah, Nevada Properties 1 holds the property. 

THE COURT:  So I was trying to make -- figure out to make 

sure that we -- all -- we talk about parties --  

MR. SALERNO:  And then they leased it to Nevada Residential, 

the leasing -- the company that's in the Agreement.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  But we don't have any -- that's not part of 
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our coverage dispute.  We're not --  

MR. SALERNO:  It is not, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  -- disputing who the parties are and whether they 

were in fact insureds? 

MR. SALERNO:  This isn't even a coverage action, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay, got it.  Well, a contribution, yeah. 

MR. SALERNO:  There is some overlap, certainly. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right, great.  I just wanted to make 

sure that we didn't have to worry about whether anybody was actually an 

insured. 

MR. SALERNO:  Fair enough. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thanks.  All right.  Thank you. 

So Counsel, anything further on this particular issue?  Keeping 

in mind our lower pleading standard, I understand that in federal court 

every fact giving rise to a cause of action needs to be specifically pled in 

your Complaint.  They sort of -- on these kinds of motions, I guess, really 

pick apart the Complaint to so see if in fact the elements are pled.  We, 

under Nevada law, have a less stringent standard, just that there is a 

cause of action that may be proven is what we need. 

So in this matter your view is that as a matter of law, we don't 

have to get into all that about what's pled in the Complaint so much with 

respect to all these facts, but it's just that as a matter of law this cause of 

action cannot exist because of the background of the management 

agreement, which was referenced in the underlying Complaint.  So, 

therefore, even though not attached, it's relevant and the Court can 
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consider it on this motion to dismiss. 

MR. AARONOFF:  That is our position, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. AARONOFF:  And the other thing I would add, Your Honor, 

judicial economy. 

THE COURT:  Okay, great.  Thank you. 

All right.  Anything else? 

MR. AARONOFF:  Not at the moment. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay, so, Mr. Morales.  Yeah. 

MR. MORALES:  Your Honor, following up on the Court's 

comment, the initial question of what was decided, it was decided as a 

matter of law that there was a nondelegable duty from Cosmopolitan.  So 

the suggestion that this was part of a verdict, et cetera, they were 

basically treated as one. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. MORALES:  Okay.  That's what happened.   

Now with regard to the pre-answer litigation we have here, we 

have a dispute about what Marquee relies on as the operative document 

and its interpretation.  And I want to start with stepping through the 

document that they rely so heavily on that is not properly authenticated 

because Mr. Bonesteel, et cetera, if you look at his declaration, he 

actually says in his declaration this is an agreement between Nevada 

Restaurant Ventures and Roof Deck Entertainment.  Neither of those 

parties is Cosmopolitan, so to the extent they are saying:  Well, look at 

this document.  And their papers do this throughout.  They conflate 
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Cosmopolitan and they just treat them as if they are the tenant.  That's 

not true. 

If you look at page 1 of the agreement, it refers to the two 

entities.  If you look at page 2 of the agreement, it specifically defines 

owner as Nevada Restaurant Group.  The provision that counsel relies 

on, he refers to owner.  Well, that is Nevada Restaurant Group. 

We have a dispute about how this document applies.  We've 

laid out several of them in our papers.  But certainly for the pleading 

standard, this nowhere is near the mark to submit a 153-page document 

that Cosmopolitan is not the operative entity.  Nevada Restaurant is the 

operative entity.  And to suddenly say we're just going to overlay 

everything and say this document controls all actions and it's over, it just 

doesn't support Nevada's pleading standards.   

And if you like, I could run through the various provisions that 

they raise that are problematic, if the Court has time, I can do that.  

Whatever you like.   

The first section, they refer to --  

THE COURT:  I guess you did raise a point, and there was a 

separate motion with respect to your objection to the evidence.  And I 

think it was somewhat addressed in the second.  There was a second 

affidavit, but I think those just went to -- 

MR. SALERNO:  Policy, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  -- policies. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  We didn't have anybody authenticating the 
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agreement, which the parties apparently consider proprietary, operational 

information, should not be made public, so we've sealed it.   

So with respect to the clarification that they actually -- that 

somebody who actually has access to the policy had it downloaded.  

And, oddly, there's all sorts of mis -- the letter l seems to be missing 

throughout that policy.  I don't know why, they just printed oddly.  So I 

guess that's the first thing that we need to discuss, with respect to the 

policy.   

Are we over our objections to the policy and are we just really 

now -- the only thing we really have to deal with is the management 

agreement. 

MR. MORALES:  Yes, you're right. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Oh, thank you. 

With respect to the -- you did have a motion on for your 

objection to the evidence, which was this issue as to whether we had 

properly declared -- proper foundation for the insurance policy.  I think 

that was answered when the second affidavit was submitted again with 

the policy.  It had more detail in it. 

MR. MORALES:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  And it explained a little bit better how the person 

who's authenticating it was related to --  

MR. MORALES:  And it was a different person. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, yeah.   

He gave more information.  He was higher up and I think 

specifically had the job that would --  
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MR. MORALES:  Yeah, it was more than two sentences. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  So is that one moot? 

MR. AARONOFF:  The policy's fine. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So we're going to moot that particular 

motion because there was a subsequent affidavit provided that satisfied 

the requirements, so we don't have to deal with that any further.  We can 

get back to our original topic.  I'm sorry, I forgot we had to deal with that. 

MR. MORALES:  Yeah, we do have an objection pending 

regarding the management agreement in that --  

THE COURT:  Management agreement, which is, yeah, 

separate, and for some reason didn't make the calendar today, so I don't 

know. 

MR. MORALES:  Mr. Bonbrest, all he testifies to is that this is a 

document between Nightclub management and Marquee, there's nothing 

to establish that this has --  

THE COURT:  We as --  

MR. MORALES:  -- binding impact or connection to --  

THE COURT:  And that was my question about do we know 

who these corporate entities are and --  

MR. MORALES:  We do know who they are.  They are -- if 

you -- the Cosmopolitan/Nevada Properties 1 is the owner of the entire 

property.  Cosmopolitan/Nevada Properties 1 leases the property, the 

particular nightclub, to Nevada Restaurant Group.  Nevada Restaurant 

Group then enters into a contract with Marquee.  Nevada Restaurant 

Group was not a party to the underlying litigation and they're not a party 

AA000413



 

Page 17 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

to this litigation. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And so what's the significance of that? 

MR. MORALES:  Well, because what Marquee is suggesting is 

that the contract entered into between Nevada Restaurant Group and 

Marquee, the terms here, they're trying to bind Cosmopolitan to those 

terms.  Some of them may apply to them, some of them may not.  But 

this broad brush, if you read their papers, their papers state:  The 

agreement between Marquee and Cosmopolitan.  That's the foundation 

of their papers. 

THE COURT:  Who owns Marquee? 

MR. MORALES:  Excuse me? 

THE COURT:  Who owns Marquee?  I mean, that's kind of what 

was missing from me, is this --  

MR. MORALES:  I don't know who owns Marquee. 

THE COURT:  -- is it like the family tree? 

MR. MORALES:  No, no.   

MR. SALERNO:  Roof Deck.  It's a separate entity, Your Honor. 

MR. MORALES:  It's a separate company. 

MR. SALERNO:  It's a Tao company. 

MR. AARONOFF:  Doing business as Marquee at the time of 

these -- I apologize.  I didn't mean to interrupt counsel. 

MR. MORALES:  There were motions filed in the underlying 

case, just by way of anecdote, where Marquee's counsel filed motions to 

tell the Court, Cosmopolitan and Marquee do not have a contract 

together.  So to suggest that this document, and I could run you through 
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their papers where they say this is an agreement between -- page 7, 

line 22:  The management agreement between Marquee and 

Cosmopolitan.  That's wrong.  They say it throughout. 

The intent of Marquee and Cosmopolitan was how these 

policies would apply.  The Cosmopolitan is not the party to this 

agreement. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Because this is my question, when I was 

reading all of this, is:  Don't we need somewhere to -- because the 

question is do we have any discovery we have left to do.  All my 

questions have been who is the insured, who are the parties to the 

contract, because it's a complex structure, --  

MR. MORALES:  We have a lot of discovery to do. 

THE COURT:  -- to say the least.  And who's who, who controls 

who, who made these agreements, was somehow this agreement a 

requisite of Cosmopolitan to either lease to Marquee?  I mean, that was 

what was kind of missing for me, is that it seems like we have to first -- I 

appreciate it's not a coverage dispute.  It's -- it's a collection --  

MR. MORALES:  It is in part.  I want to correct that.  It is in part 

a coverage dispute. 

THE COURT:  Well, coverage matters, but the issue is just can 

you collect under these terms.  I didn't -- I thought it was -- on the surface 

I understood that these are all legal issues, but what I -- seriously, I was 

trying to make little charts of who owned who, and I got lost because it's 

very unclear. 

I mean, I think I understand who the actual insured is, and they 
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have a bunch of subsidiaries, but I didn't understand where Roof Deck 

came into all of that structure or who they were, or Marquee --  

MR. MORALES:  We'd submit that there was a lot of discovery 

to do, and this motion is to be denied. 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. MORALES:  I mean, there is a lot of work to do.  

Admittedly, I’m new to the case.  I think the only ones who have been 

involved since the underlining litigation was Mr. Salerno's firm. 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. MORALES:  But I'm -- we're getting up to speed.  But just 

reading the document on its face and reading their papers, their papers 

misstate the relationships. 

MR. AARONOFF:  May I respond, Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  Maybe.  Yeah.  Yes, I wish you would. 

MR. AARONOFF:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

Your Honor, I'm going to read paragraph 86 of Plaintiff's 

Complaint.  86, this is on page 13 of the Complaint, for reference:  Per 

written agreement, comma, Marquee was obligated to indemnify, comma, 

hold harmless and defend Cosmopolitan for Marati's claims in the 

underlying action, period.  End of sentence. 

This is counsel's own writing here.  Now if he can't tell us 

whether the Nightclub Management Agreement what I'm holding in my 

hand here, if that's the not the written agreement he was talking about, 

then what agreement was he talking about? 

Second, Your Honor, if we look back at page 63, which is the 
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section regarding indemnity, it says --  

THE COURT:  Are we back in the management agreement or 

are we on the contract still -- I mean, the Complaint still? 

MR. AARONOFF:  We're in the Nightclub Management 

Agreement.  I'm sorry, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  The management agreement, okay. 

MR. AARONOFF:  If you look at the specific language of the 

key provision, it says that the operator shall indemnify, hold harmless, 

and defend owner, and he points out, it said earlier, the owner is Nevada 

Restaurant.  Okay, but it says:  Owner, and its respective parents, 

subsidiaries, and affiliates.  And affiliates is a defined term in the 

Nightclub Management Agreement, and all of each of their respective 

officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, members, 

managers, representatives, successors, and assigns.  And this entire 

block of individuals and/or entities is called the owner indemnities.   

I don't see what more needs to be said here, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  But, again, that was my question because I  

started with the policy --  

MR. AARONOFF:  Right. 

THE COURT:  -- to see who are we talking about, who's our 

actual insured, and how do they relate to the entities here in Nevada.  

And, again, that's where I kind of ran aground because I don't find that all 

of the entities are actually defined as to -- because, as I said, the one 

thing I found that defined what ownership was was in the policy.  It said 

50 percent.  If you own 50 percent of anything you own, then that's part 
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of our insured.   

But I didn't find anything that defined, you know, because they 

just named that entity in the policy.  They didn't talk about other insureds, 

other named insureds, who they were supposed to be indemnifying, and 

how does that policy, when read with this management agreement, how 

we do we determine if we're talking about the same thing, because it 

seems like there's a little bit different language and definitions in the 

policy than there is in this management agreement.  And that's where I 

couldn't figure out where we could define them the same way, because 

we didn't have enough background information about who owed who. 

And that's I think what we need.  I mean, we need to know who actually 

owns these people --  

MR. SALERNO:  Your Honor --  

THE COURT:  -- because, you know, I'm not allowed to go to 

the Secretary of State's page and figure it out myself, so. 

MR. SALERNO:  I think all you really need to know is whether 

this is the agreement that they're basing the claim on.  Because if it is, 

this is what it says.  And if they're standing here saying this isn't the 

agreement, then they have a pleading obligation to come forward and 

identify what is, otherwise the pleadings are deficient.  You're not hearing 

that this isn't the agreement. 

MR. MORALES:  We're all going to argue now? 

MR. SALERNO:  You're not hearing this is not the agreement.  

You're hearing some kind of technical argument, based on an evidentiary 

objection, that if that's the case, then they haven't met their burden 
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pleading.  And Mr. Morales is not sitting here saying this isn't the 

agreement. 

THE COURT:  Right.  But that -- and I understand that, but 

because we have the actual document, it has been sealed, and we do 

need to figure out how we're going to deal with that. 

The problem that I ran into was there doesn't seem to be a 

direct, on-its-face, this is the name.  We have this finding by the other 

court.  I thought it was like a legal direction to the jury.  Like I said, I 

wasn't involved, don't really know, so I guess I need to look that up.   

But I'm still trying to figure out how we figured out who the 

parties were, how did we get -- because I don't know, I don't really think 

about Mr. Marati's Complaint, what he alleged, who he said was 

responsible, and how we got there?  Like I said, I can't do my own 

research on corporate entities, so that's what I was just -- to me it 

seemed like this largely is an issue of law, I understand that.  But the 

relationships of these parties are a little obscure, and I'm trying to figure 

out how we got from Roof Deck, how was Cosmopolitan named, and 

that's -- you know sort of what I'm missing here is we need to 

understand --  

MR. SALERNO:  That's really a pleading issue, Your Honor, if I 

may --  

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

MR. MORALES:  Marati filed extensive litigation.  If I could, 

Your Honor --  

THE COURT:  Mr. Salerno --  
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MR. MORALES:  If I could respond to Mr. Salerno's comment? 

THE COURT:  Mr. Salerno, I think, had another comment to 

make, sir --  

MR. MORALES:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  -- and then we'll respond, yeah. 

MR. MORALES:  Okay. 

MR. SALERNO:  I mean, Your Honor's illustrated a point with 

the pleadings.  I don't think there is a dispute whether the insureds 

properly flow and whether St. Paul insured Cosmo, which also insured 

Nevada Residential Properties.  I don't think there is a dispute in that 

regard.  But they chose to plead it this way.   

And I would respectfully submit all Your Honor really needs to 

know is whether this is the written agreement that they're basing the 

express indemnity claim on that they claim is owed to Cosmo or Nevada 

Residential Properties.  What are they claiming?  And if they're saying it's 

not clear, and they're sitting here denying this is it, then that's a real 

deficiency in their pleading that must be corrected, and then we can 

come back and deal with this issue.  But I'm here to tell you they won't tell 

you that because this is the agreement, and everybody knows and 

understands that. 

And so what I would respectfully submit is that this written 

agreement with this express indemnity provision is all the Court really 

needs to know to decide this aspect of the motion.   

Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, because the -- you know paragraph 
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6, and I don't think anybody disputes this, the dispute arises out of the 

160,500,000 compensatory damage jury verdict award in Marati versus 

Roof Deck, LLC, dba Marquee, and then et al.  So who are the et al. and 

where did the court come up with this agreement that as a matter of law 

they're vicariously liable?  Cosmo had a nondelegable duty.   

Marati also named Nevada Property, LLC, dba the 

Cosmopolitan.  Okay.  So that's just my concern, is how can we 

immediately get to who owes who what kind of duties until we know what 

the different corporate structures are and how they are related, if they 

are. 

I mean, I don't know how Mr. Marati got Cosmo in here.  I am 

assuming because they're ultimately the landlord and as a licensee they 

are obligated to be responsible.  They can't wash themselves of all 

responsibility even if it's a four-wall like this one was.  They can't divest 

themselves with all obligations.  So what was that based on?  Did the 

judge handling -- who was the judge at the trial?  I don't --  

MR. MORALES:  Judge Johnson, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Judge -- okay, I didn't remember, yeah.  -- make 

that determination, that Cosmo --  

MR. SALERNO:  He did, Your Honor, and I don't know what 

specific arguments were made. 

THE COURT:  No.  

MR. SALERNO:  But clearly St. Paul insured one of the 

entities --  

THE COURT:  Right.  Yeah, okay. 
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MR. SALERNO:  -- and paid that money on behalf of one of 

those entities, and that's not really in dispute in this action.  Now 

something like that could come up through the course of discovery. 

THE COURT:  I understand. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  But why did they do it?  Like I said, I can figure 

out St. Paul.  That policy says if you own 50 percent, okay.  So how then 

did that relate to who they -- who were the parties in this litigation and 

what they paid on. 

I mean to me, I appreciate you think this should all be in the 

Complaint, but we're not in federal court, so --  

MR. SALERNO:  Yeah, but those are essential facts to evaluate 

their standing and threshold legal issues that should be addressed at this 

stage of the pleading.  So I realize it's notice pleading, and Your Honor 

had been practicing in this state a long time, but when there's essential 

facts that are necessary to show capacity and standing to sue, and, you 

know, the legal ability to pursue a claim, they should be pled if counsel is 

going to get up today and then dispute them or claim it's ambiguous or 

claim they haven't been established.  You can't have it both ways. 

THE COURT:  You know originally you had talked about that 

you were going to split the -- your discussion on the various motions. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  So we -- before Mr. Morales gets back up and 

responds, have we discussed both of them?  Because we --  

MR. SALERNO:  I haven't done my -- the motion to dismiss on 
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behalf of National Union yet, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So we're -- so far we have just discussed 

the original motion, which was the Marquee motion, correct? 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes, Your Honor. 

MR. AARONOFF:  Correct. 

THE COURT:  Anything more to say on Marquee before we get 

into National Union? 

MR. MORALES:  Your Honor, just to clarify what Marquee is 

doing repeatedly, and he just did it again, he said:  Well, this is that 

agreement.  What he doesn't discuss is how the agreement applies to the 

separate entities.  That's what's missing, that's what needs discovery, 

okay.  It's very -- it's a basic issue.  We're going to do discovery on how it 

applies to different entities.  There are ownership entities, there are 

project ownership entities, there are operator entities.  They just want to 

conflate everything and say, oh, look, nothing to see here.  That's not the 

case.  There's work to do. 

THE COURT:  So, Mr. Salerno, then we have the next motion 

that we have is the National Union.  And, again, your firm and your 

associated counsel represent both? 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes, Your Honor.  Thank you.  And both firms, 

including out of state. 

Your Honor, so the motion to dismiss on behalf of National 

Union has a couple tiered arguments similar to the other motion.  And the 

first tier that the Court must address really as a matter of Nevada law is 

an issue of first impression in the district courts here, in the state district 
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courts.  And that is whether Nevada recognizes an equitable subrogation 

right among carriers.  Nevada has not squarely addressed that.  It's been 

addressed in other states, like California certainly, and even federal 

district courts sitting in Nevada have allowed it.  But so that's a threshold 

question that Your Honor must address as part of this motion.  And then 

with regard -- and that's with regard to the first cause of action for failure 

to settle. 

The second cause of action for equitable subrogation based on 

Nevada’s Unclaimed Fair Practices Act is similar.  There is no court 

anywhere that's allowed an insurance company to step into their shoes to 

pursue that, a cause of action based upon that act. 

And so Your Honor will by necessity need to address whether 

that's going to be allowed.  But even so there's problem with those 

causes of action as a matter of law that should be addressed at this 

stage of the proceedings.  On the first cause of action for failure to settle, 

you have a pleading here that says that both carriers, St. Paul and 

National Union, are excess-level carriers. 

St. Paul tries to say, no, we're a high-level excess, whatever 

that means.  But none of the case law talks about that.  They talk about 

the ability of an excess carrier in the states that allow equitable 

subrogation for failure to settle.  They talk about the ability of an excess 

carrier to pursue a primary carrier for their failure to settle.  Not excess to 

excess.  And so that's another issue that needs to be addressed by Your 

Honor.   

If you're going to allow equitable subrogation, what are the 
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factors?  Are they the similar factors that have been adopted in 

California, where it's excess against primary and other equities are 

considered, which can get into fact questions, but not whether you're 

excess versus primary.  Those are legal questions that should be 

addressed at this stage of the proceeding.  Because if St. Paul's truly not 

an excess carrier to National Union, they have no cause of action even if 

Your Honor would allow equitable subrogation, such as an estate based 

on the factors that would have been developed in California. 

Now similar to this nightclub agreement thing, St. Paul wants to 

hide behind the fact that they haven't pled the operative provisions to 

show that it is an excess carrier to National Union.  Right now the 

Complaint just says excess to excess.  And so based on the Complaint, 

that cause of action fails as a matter of law, if Your Honor would allow 

equitable subrogation for failure to settle. 

They have their own policy.  Rather than come forward and 

show you the language that they claim needs to be looked at, they try to 

say, oh, we don't have the information, we need to conduct discovery.  

You don't need to conduct discovery on basic threshold legal matters.  

They should be pled.  And that's really the point of this. 

So if Your Honor is going to allow equitable subrogation to be 

pursued between carriers, we should at least evaluate this issue upfront 

in the name of judicial economy, because either they are stuck with the 

facts they’ve pled, excess to excess, or they need to plead more so we 

can evaluate that priority of coverage issue as a threshold question. 

They’ve had their chance, so we respectfully submit they 
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shouldn't be allowed now to conduct discovery on issues that should 

have been pled, that they should have come forward with as part of this 

motion work and demonstrated, and instead have tried to hide behind the 

alleged evidentiary issues, which are legal issues.   

So Your Honor should decide it on the pleadings.  But to the 

extent Your Honor's not inclined to do that, they should have to amend 

their Complaint to set out the provisions, the legally operative provisions 

that Your Honor can decide as a matter of law to, in fact, show they have 

standing to pursue this claim as an excess carrier, and we can address 

that properly as a threshold question. 

On the Unfair Claims Practices Act, it's the same thing, Your 

Honor.  Yeah, there's an absence of law, so St. Paul thinks they should 

be allowed to do it, but it's a statutory scheme meant to protect 

consumers.  In the times that third-party claimants have tried to step in, 

the Supreme Court has provided guidance that said, no, you can't do 

that. 

Think about what St. Paul is trying to say here, that they can 

pursue their failure-to-settle claim but without all those equitable factors 

that have to be considered, by stepping into the shoes of their insured 

under the Unfair Claims Practices Act.  That's not what that act is meant 

to be, because if it was, every carrier in this case could do the same 

thing.  National Union can file a counterclaim against St. Paul.  We paid 

money, we step into the insured's shoes.  You should have settled, 

because that's what this fight's about, whether both should have settled 

or both have equal opportunity, when the right elements exist, which they 
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don't.  But that's not what the Unfair Claims Practices Act is about.  Some 

form for carriers to come in and point fingers at each other to try to 

resolve who should have done what.  It's a consumer-protection statute.  

It has no application to these claims. 

Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thanks. 

MR. MORALES:  Your Honor, a couple of things.  First, 

Mr. Salerno opens by saying these are both undecided issues of law in 

Nevada.  Accepting that at face value, which I do not, but I believe where 

the action raises an issue of law that is a first impression, motions to 

dismiss are disfavored.  Okay, so --  

MR. SALERNO:  Citation, please? 

MR. MORALES:  It's in our papers.  Chestnut v AVX Corp. 413 

S.C. 224. 

Okay.  So on its face, to say, well, these are novel legal issues, 

so they should be decided at the pre-answered motion stage is incorrect.  

But let's move to whether or not these are novel issues.  They are not. 

What National Union is saying is subrogation doesn't exist.  

Well, the Supreme Court in AT&T Technologies v Reed, 109 Nevada 

592, says:  Subrogation is a basic accomplish to accomplish fairness and 

justice between the parties.  It's a very basic concept.  What National 

Union is suggesting and what they're doing is they're saying: well, we've 

never seen a case with these two parties.  It's as if you were to say 

there’s never been a negligence case between two flight attendants, so it 

must not be allowed. 
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Subrogation is a basic concept.  There are legions of cases 

recognizing it.  What is clearly absent from National Union's papers is a 

case disallowing it.  They just say, it's never been there. 

Now let me comment on another point in National Union's 

papers.  National Union takes the liberty of saying, in fact, there has 

never been a subrogation case in a Nevada state court between carriers.  

I will submit to you that I litigated a case with Mr. Salerno as my co-

counsel in subrogation before Judge Earl, Case Number A5-13374.  So 

to say to the Court there has never been a subrogation case in the state 

of Nevada?  That's ridiculous.  Subrogation exists because it is a basic 

concept.  It is simply trying to do justice between the parties.  If they want 

to sue us because they think we did wrong, they're free to.  But 

subrogation is an old, basic concept.  We cite to a number of cases that 

recognize it in this context.  We cite to the Colony decision which is, 

frankly, on all fours.  And what National Union says is they predict we'll 

cite the law.  Yes, we do.  That is their prediction.  They're correct on 

that.  We do cite the law, because the law is in our favor.  The law 

recognizes this cause of action.  The law recognizes it on all counts.  It's 

not limited to some accounts and others.  Subrogation is a basic concept 

of due justice.  That's what we're doing. 

Their suggestion that because they are not -- these particular 

parties, it can never be allowed, not only is improper at the pre-answer 

stage, but it's improper legally. 

THE COURT:  What about the Unfair Claims Practices Act?  I 

mean, that's a statutory scheme --  
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MR. MORALES:  It's a recycle.  It's the same issue because 

what --  

THE COURT:  No, because it's statutory.  And the statutory 

language talks about the insured versus their insurance career.  So how 

can that be extended to this third-party concept of indemnity?  It doesn't 

make any sense --  

MR. MORALES:  It is not a third-party concept.  We are 

stepping into the shoes of the insured.  Their insured, Cosmopolitan.  

They admit that in their papers.  We're stepping into the shoes of 

Cosmopolitan because National Union had obligations to them.  They 

had obligations to notify --  

THE COURT:  You can step into the shoes of your insured, but 

you can't step into the shoes of a third party.  I mean, Cosmopolitan isn't 

a party --  

MR. MORALES:  Your Honor, Cosmopolitan is National Union's 

insured. 

THE COURT:  I understand, --  

MR. MORALES:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  -- but how far do you have to step into the shoes 

of their -- subrogation is they pay a claim on behalf of their insured and 

they go sue the third party. 

MR. MORALES:  No, sub- --  

THE COURT:  Where is there any right for a third-party carrier 

to step into the shoes of somebody else's insurance company to sue that 

insurance company for --  
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MR. MORALES:  We're not stepping into the shoes of National 

Union. 

THE COURT:  No, no.  You're stepping into the shoes of 

Cosmopolitan.  We already had -- they're not your insured. 

MR. MORALES:  Cosmopolitan has a claim for Unfair Claims 

Practices against National Union. 

THE COURT:  Did they assign it to you?  Do you have a 

contract assigning it? 

MR. MORALES:  No, it's equitably assigned in subrogation. 

THE COURT:  No. 

MR. MORALES:  That's what subrogation is. 

THE COURT:  This is a statutory remedy that an insured has 

against their carrier.  So if you weren't assigned this statutory cause of 

action by the party who holds it, what right do you have equitably to 

statutory remedy, specifically limited to the insured? 

MR. MORALES:  Subrogation is an equitable assignment. 

THE COURT:  But there is a difference between subrogation 

and Unfair Claims Practices, and Unfair Claims Practices is absolutely, 

statutorily the right of the insured.  They're not your insured. 

MR. MORALES:  Cosmopolitan --  

THE COURT:  I mean, I would understand this if -- as counsel 

as insurance company for Cosmopolitan, they chose to step into their 

insured's shoes --  

MR. MORALES:  We are. 

THE COURT:  -- because there is a statutory agreement for 
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subrogation there.  And their actual insured would have the right to 

assign their cause of action, because this is a statutory cause of action.  

It's not common law.  You can't say under a common law right of 

subrogation we're going to take over the statutory claim that's not of our 

own insured but against some third party, forcing them to sue their carrier 

for coverage --  

MR. MORALES:  So is --  

THE COURT:  -- for the Unfair Claims Practices Act. 

MR. MORALES:  So would the Court --  

THE COURT:  That's Cosmopolitan's right to say that. 

MR. MORALES:  Are you saying we would need an express 

assignment from Cosmopolitan in order to pursue that count? 

THE COURT:  I'm saying I don't understand how you can claim 

it because it's statutory. 

MR. MORALES:  We view it as a straight subrogation claim and 

we step into the shoes --  

THE COURT:  But you can't impose a common law remedy --  

MR. MORALES:  I understand.  I understand the Court's point. 

THE COURT:  -- on a statutory right.  The statutory right is 

defined, who is the party who may sue for an Unfair Claims Practices Act.  

And I see nothing that would -- under the statue give you a right to claim 

that.  It's the right of an insured and if the insured -- it's an excess 

judgment against him and wants to assign all their rights to the person 

who holds the judgment, that's their right.  They can assign their rights, 

but it's not a statutory -- or it's not a common law remedy of subrogation, 
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it's a statutory claim.  And I don't understand how under this statute you 

could claim that. 

MR. MORALES:  We insure Cosmopolitan.  We paid a 

significant amount on their behalf.   

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. MORALES:  It's our view that in subrogation we step into 

their shoes to pursue whatever claims they have against National Union. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So thanks. 

Mr. Salerno. 

MR. SALERNO:  Briefly, Your Honor.  Counsel made the point 

about equitable subrogation being, you know, a known right and applied 

it in the insurance setting.  I did not say that no case has ever been 

pursued at the state court level, because I don't know if that's true.  I said 

Nevada has not addressed whether it's allowed.  That means the 

Supreme Court.   

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. SOLERNO:  And that's all I meant by that.  I did not mean 

to mislead Your Honor as insinuated by counsel. 

What counsel doesn't address, though, is, okay, if Your Honor is 

inclined to recognize that as a viable cause of action, what are the 

factors?  One of the factors is has to be excess to primary.  Counsel 

didn't address that point whatsoever, so I take that as an admission that 

it's not excess to primary, because that's not what's alleged in their 

Complaint.  What's alleged in their Complaint is two umbrella policies with 

the same limits for two different insureds, two different towers of 
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coverage, one in which -- one tower in which Cosmo is also an additional 

insured, and that's the National Union tower. 

It's also never been allowed in Nevada with two different towers.  

So those are just threshold legal issues Your Honor has to address.  But 

as a matter of law to allow this claim to proceed, St. Paul has to 

demonstrate and be able to plead if they're saying something different 

now than what's in their pleadings, the operative provisions that makes 

their policy somehow high-level excess to the excess level of the National 

Union policy.  If, in fact, that's true, they have their policy, they have that 

language, that is a legal question that should be addressed at this stage, 

because we don't need to engage in costly discovery about a bunch of 

facts that are irrelevant.  It's a threshold legal question. 

So I would say base it on the pleading, Your Honor.  But if 

you're not inclined to, you think there is an issue there, they should be 

required to amend their pleadings to set out their operative provisions -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. SALERNO:  -- or discovery should be very limited just to 

that issue, and then we'll address it with Your Honor with all the 

information. 

THE COURT:  Well, with respect to the first motion, which is the 

Roof Deck motion, I am going to deny that without prejudice to be 

renewed at an appropriate time because I think we are lacking just a 

basic understanding of who the players are, who the insureds are, who 

the contract parties were, was there some word from above from Cosmo 

that you needed -- that there is an agreement there that is why the 

AA000433



 

Page 37 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

coverage passed through.  I don't know any of those answers.  So for 

that one I think that's premature. 

With respect to the second motion, which is the National Union 

motion, that to me is a disparate issue because it raised these two very 

specific issues, the standing concept.  I am very troubled by the concept 

that a statutory remedy that is specific to an insured against their 

insurance carrier can be somehow assumed by another carrier that may 

have paid a claim, that they may have benefitted from the payment of 

that claim.  I don't understand that cause of action at all.   

So I don't know if it's possible to plead in more terms anything 

that would show that, but I’ll certainly give them leave to amend this 

pleading because I do think what we have to have amended are what 

the -- specifically, I think we have to have this.  I don't think this is a 

problem with just notice of pleading, but I think we have to know the base 

upon which they're claiming -- against which St. Paul is claiming this right 

to indemnity, whether equitable or contractual, seems like it's mostly 

equitable.  I'm not sure subrogation is ever equitable, but contribution is. 

So I think we have to have this pleading amended on those two 

issues, because I do not, I cannot comprehend how this statutory remedy 

of an insured against their own insurance company -- there's a 

relationship between the insured and their insurance company that is 

contractual, that gives you a statutory remedy.  I don't see how that could 

ever be equitable or assumed by somebody else.  It's a statutory remedy.  

It's very specific.  They owe you a contractual duty as your insurance 

company because you've paid the premiums.  It's personal to the 
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insured.  But, anyway, I still think we need -- I would grant the alternative 

relief requested of amending the pleading. 

MR. AARONOFF:  So we're --  

MR. SALERNO:  Your Honor, may I clarify?  I understood what 

you said about the two issues that should be addressed on an amended 

pleading, which is the ability to pursue an Unfair Claims Practices Act.  

Was the other one relating to the management agreement and the 

capacity of the parties? 

THE COURT:  No.  We were talking here, as I thought was your 

argument, is that this --  

MR. SALERNO:  The operative provisions. 

THE COURT:  -- as in the universe of all this coverage, who 

owed the obligations to pay what first, because that was what I 

understood your problem was with --  

MR. SALERNO:  That --  

THE COURT:  -- them saying that they have the right to sue 

you, is that how do they have standing to sue you, what is it in their -- 

either in common law or if that's what it is, that's fine, or if there is some 

contractual --  

MR. SALERNO:  To show priority essentially of --  

THE COURT:  Agreements, yeah. 

MR. SALERNO:  -- who is excess, who is primary. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Because that was your point, was --  

MR. SALERNO:  That -- that's right. 

THE COURT:  -- is there even standing to sue National Union --  
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MR. SALERNO:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

MR. MORALES:  So, Your Honor, so I'm clear, --  

THE COURT:  -- on just those two issues. 

MR. MORALES:  You want amendment on both counts or just 

on the --  

THE COURT:  Yes.  Yes. 

MR. MORALES:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  On both of them, yeah.   

So one is granted in part as to the alternative relief that was 

requested, that's the National Union motion.  I just am going to deny as 

premature the motion to dismiss just on the bigger issue of how are these 

parties related, what are the contracts that relate them --  

MR. SALERNO:  Who's on first, who's on third. 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. AARONOFF:  Third base. 

THE COURT:  And the corporate structures --  

MR. SALERNO:  Your Honor, could we limit discovery to those 

issues before we go too far down the road in this case? 

THE COURT:  Well, I think first we have to see the amended -- 

proposed amended pleading, because we don't have.  And so we would 

need to see their proposed amended pleading, you know, before we 

could even go any further. 

MR. SALERNO:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  And then we'll -- then we can see where –  

MR. MORALES:  Thank you, Your Honor. 
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THE COURT:  -- we're going with it. 

MR. SALERNO:  Fair enough. 

THE COURT:  All right.  You all have a good week. 

MR. SALERNO:  Your Honor, should we submit orders and 

exchange them between counsel then? 

THE COURT:  Yes. 

MR. SALERNO:  All right.  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  I mean because there are the two different 

motions. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  And then we also need the other motions on the 

other orders on the sealing and --  

MR. SALERNO:  I gave you those.  I don't know if --  

THE COURT:  So you've got all those? 

MR. SALERNO:  -- Your Honor wants to sign those and provide 

them back or --  

THE COURT:  I have another motion to hear so, yeah, we'll 

process --  

MR. SALERNO:  Pick them up later. 

THE COURT:  -- them and get them back to you. 

MR. SALERNO:  Very well.  Thank you, Your Honor. 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . .

AA000437



 

Page 41 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So as long as I've got all of our orders, we're good.   

Thank you, all. 

MR. SALERNO:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

[Hearing concluded at 11:06 a.m.] 

* * * * * * * 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:    I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the 

audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability. 
      
  

 
     _____________________________ 

      Susan Palmer 
      Court Recorder/Transcriber 
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ST. PAUL FIRE & MARINE INSURANCE
COMPANY,

Plaintiff,

vs.

ASPEN SPECIALTY INSURANCE
COMPANY; NATIONAL UNION FIRE
INSURANCE COMPANY OF
PITTSBURGH, PA.; ROOF DECK
ENTERTAINMENT, LLC, d/b/a MARQUEE
NIGHTCLUB; and DOES 1 through 25,
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CASE NO.: A-17-758902-C

DEPT.: 26

REDACTED FIRST AMENDED
COMPLAINT

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Exempt from Arbitration: Amount in
Controversy Exceeds $50,000.00

Plaintiff ST. PAUL FIRE & MARINE INSURANCE COMPANY (“St. Paul”) for its First

Amended Complaint alleges as follows:

THE PARTIES

1. St. Paul is a Connecticut corporation, is duly authorized to do business in Nevada

and is engaged in the business of insurance.

2. Defendant ASPEN SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY (“Aspen”) is a foreign

corporation doing business in Nevada, and is engaged in the business of insurance. Aspen’s
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principal place of business is in Connecticut.

3. Defendant NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF

PITTSBURGH, PA. (“AIG”) is a foreign corporation doing business in Nevada, and is engaged in

the business of insurance.

4. Defendant ROOF DECK ENTERTAINMENT, LLC, d/b/a Marquee Nightclub

(“Marquee”) is a foreign limited liability company doing business in Nevada. Marquee owns and

operates the Marquee Nightclub located in Las Vegas, Nevada. Upon information and belief, one

or more of Marquee’s members is a citizen of Nevada.

5. St. Paul is unaware of the true names and capacities of defendants named herein as

DOES 1-20, inclusive, and therefore sues these defendants by such fictitious names. St. Paul will

seek leave of this Court to amend this Complaint to show the true names and capacities of these

fictitiously named defendants when the same have been ascertained.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

6. This dispute arises out of a $160,500,000 compensatory damages jury verdict in a

personal injury suit titled Moradi v. Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC, d/b/a Marquee Nightclub, et

al., District Court Clark County, Nevada, Case No. A-14-698824-C (“Underlying Action”).

7. In the Underlying Action, plaintiff David Moradi (“Moradi”) generally alleged that

on or about April 8, 2012, he went to the Marquee Nightclub located within The Cosmopolitan

Hotel and Casino to socialize with friends. Moradi alleged that he drank champagne at the

Marquee Nightclub for approximately three hours, amassing a bar tab of over $10,000. He alleged

that the cocktail waitress serving him at the Marquee Nightclub, who drank several alcoholic

drinks while serving Moradi and was “presumably drunk,” started a confrontation with Moradi

over his credit card/identification that escalated and ultimately resulted in Moradi being violently

and brutally attacked and beaten by Marquee employees, resulting in personal injuries, including

brain damage.

8. Moradi filed the complaint in the Underlying Action on April 4, 2014, a copy of

which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

9. In the complaint, Moradi sought general, special and punitive damages. In
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particular, Moradi alleged that as a result of his injuries, he had suffered lost wages/income and

that he would continue to suffer lost wages/income into the future. Moradi asserted causes of

action for: 1) Assault and Battery; 2) Negligence; 3) Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress;

and 4) False Imprisonment.

10. In addition to Marquee, Moradi named Nevada Property 1 LLC, d/b/a The

Cosmopolitan of Las Vegas (“Cosmopolitan”) as a defendant to the complaint. Cosmopolitan is

the owner of the property where the Marquee Nightclub is located. Cosmopolitan leased the

nightclub location to Nevada Restaurant Venture 1 LLC. Nevada Restaurant Venture 1 LLC

entered into a written agreement with Marquee to manage the nightclub.

11. During the course of the Underlying Action, Moradi put forth testimony,

documentation, and expert opinion in support of his allegations: that Moradi suffered brain injury

as a result of the beating; that before the incident Moradi was a highly successful hedge fund

manager, and owned his own hedge fund in New York City; that Moradi’s income was

approximately $11,000,000 the year before the incident; that as a result of Moradi’s brain injuries

he could no longer function as a hedge fund manager, resulting in closure of his hedge fund; that

the underlying defendants were liable for Moradi’s injuries; and that the underlying defendants

concealed and/or destroyed evidence pertaining to the incident.

12. Moradi asserted a lost income claim specifically for past lost wages in the range of

approximately $29,000,000 to $44,000,000, and future lost wages in the range of approximately

$87,000,000 to $264,000,000.

13. During the course of the Underlying Action, Moradi made legal arguments that

Cosmopolitan, as the owner of The Cosmopolitan Hotel and Casino (where the Marquee

Nightclub is located), had a “non-delegable duty” to keep patrons safe, including Moradi. The

Court in the Underlying Action agreed with Moradi’s position, and therefore imposed vicarious

liability on Cosmopolitan for Marquee’s actions and Moradi’s resulting damages.

14. The Court in the Underlying Action also ruled that Marquee and Cosmopolitan

were jointly and severally liable for Moradi’s damages claim.

15. Marquee is a named insured to Aspen primary commercial general liability policy
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number CRA8XYD11, effective October 6, 2011, to October 6, 2012 (“Aspen Policy”).

16. The Aspen Policy includes limits of: $1,000,000 each occurrence; $1,000,000

personal and advertising injury for any one person or organization; and $2,000,000 general

aggregate. The Aspen Policy also includes Liquor Liability coverage, with a separate $1,000,000

common cause limit and a $2,000,000 Liquor Liability general aggregate limit.

17. Aspen’s $1,000,000 each occurrence limit generally provides coverage for damages

because of “bodily injury” caused by an “occurrence.”

18. Aspen’s $1,000,000 personal and advertising injury limit generally provides

coverage for damages because of “personal and advertising injury,” sustained by any one person

or organization.

19. Aspen’s $1,000,000 Liquor Liability coverage generally provides coverage for

damages because of “injury” in connection with the selling, serving or furnishing of alcohol.

20. Aspen eventually tendered its Coverage A, $1,000,000 “bodily injury” occurrence

limit as a combined settlement offer on behalf of both its insureds, Marquee and Cosmopolitan.

21. Aspen later paid its Coverage A, $1,000,000 “bodily injury” occurrence limit solely

on behalf of Marquee and has paid no indemnity policy benefits on Cosmopolitan’s behalf.

22. Aspen did not offer, and has not paid, the “personal injury” $1,000,000 per offense

limit.

23. Aspen did not offer, and has not paid, the $2,000,000 Coverage A and B general

aggregate limit.

24. Cosmopolitan is an insured to the Aspen Policy with respect to the Underlying

Action. The Aspen Policy insures Cosmopolitan for liability arising out of Marquee’s

management of the Marquee Nightclub for both Cosmopolitan’s independent negligence as well

as its vicarious liability.

25. Cosmopolitan tendered the Underlying Action to Marquee for defense and

indemnity pursuant to a written agreement wherein Marquee agreed to indemnify, hold harmless

and defend Cosmopolitan in connection with Marquee’s management of the Marquee Nightclub.

Marquee accepted Cosmopolitan’s tender.
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26. Marquee and Cosmopolitan tendered the Underlying Action to Aspen for coverage

under the Aspen Policy.

27. Aspen acknowledged coverage for Cosmopolitan and Marquee under the Aspen

Policy, and in light of Marquee’s acceptance of Cosmopolitan’s contractual indemnity tender,

provided a joint defense to Cosmopolitan and Marquee in the Underlying Action through a single

defense firm, Marquee having agreed to defend and indemnify Cosmopolitan in connection with

the Underlying Action.

28. Based on information and belief, Aspen initially retained the law firm of Kravitz

Schnitzer & Johnson to represent Marquee and Cosmopolitan. Then without providing proper

informed consent to Cosmopolitan or advising Cosmopolitan that Kravitz Schnitzer & Johnson

reported the matter as a nine figure exposure, Aspen terminated Kravitz Schnitzer & Johnson’s

services. Aspen then appointed Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP to defend Marquee and

Cosmopolitan, also without providing Cosmopolitan proper informed consent.

29. During the course of the Underlying Action, Aspen took the position that its

maximum coverage obligation for a settlement or judgment on behalf Cosmopolitan and Marquee

combined was $1,000,000 total, corresponding to only the $1,000,000 Coverage A each

occurrence “bodily injury” limit. Aspen thereby denied coverage regarding its obligation to pay,

among other things, the $1,000,000 “personal and advertising injury” limit.

30. Marquee is a named insured to AIG commercial umbrella liability policy number

BE25414413, effective October 6, 2011, to October 6, 2012 (“AIG Policy”).

31. The AIG Policy includes limits of $25,000,000 each occurrence, a $25,000,000

general aggregate, and a $25,000,000 products-completed operations aggregate limit.

32. After the verdict in the Underlying Action, AIG paid a $25,000,000 “bodily injury”

occurrence limit solely on behalf of Marquee and has paid no indemnity policy benefits on

Cosmopolitan’s behalf. AIG denied that it had any further obligation to pay benefits on

Cosmopolitan’s behalf.

33. Cosmopolitan is an insured to the AIG Policy with respect to the Underlying

Action for liability arising out of Marquee’s management of the Marquee Nightclub, both
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Cosmopolitan’s independent negligence as well as its vicarious liability.

34. Marquee and Cosmopolitan tendered the Underlying Action to AIG for coverage

under the AIG Policy.

35. Given the large exposure in the Underlying Action, AIG acknowledged coverage

for Cosmopolitan and Marquee under the AIG Policy and, in light of Marquee’s acceptance of

Cosmopolitan’s contractual indemnity tender, provided a joint defense to Cosmopolitan and

Marquee in the Underlying Action through a single defense firm selected by AIG, Weinberg

Wheeler Hudgins Gunn & Dial, Marquee having agreed to defend and indemnify Cosmopolitan in

connection with the Underlying Action.

36. AIG appointed counsel, Weinberg Wheeler, associated into the case on or about

June 10, 2016.

37. AIG did not issue a reservation of rights letter upon appointing Weinberg Wheeler

to defend both Marquee and Cosmopolitan.

38. During the course of the Underlying Action, AIG took the position that its total

limit under the AIG Policy to pay for a settlement or judgment on behalf of both Cosmopolitan

and Marquee was $25,000,000 total. AIG further took the position that its $25,000,000 obligation

was excess to Aspen’s claimed $1,000,000 limit and that AIG had no indemnity unless and until

Aspen paid or tendered the primary limit.

39. Based on the respective positions taken by Aspen and AIG (unless otherwise

differentiated, collectively referred to hereinafter as “Carrier Defendants”) regarding their limits,

Carrier Defendants took the position throughout the Underlying Action that the total combined

limit of liability to pay for a judgment or settlement on behalf of Cosmopolitan and Marquee was

$26,000,000.

40. Cosmopolitan is an insured to St. Paul commercial umbrella liability policy number

QK06503290, effective March 1, 2011 to March 1, 2013 (“St. Paul Policy”).

41. Marquee is not an insured to the St. Paul Policy and St. Paul had no coverage

obligations to Marquee in the Underlying Action.

42. The St. Paul Policy contains a subrogation provision which transfers all of
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Cosmopolitan’s rights of recovery against any other person or organization to St. Paul for all or

part of any payment made by St. Paul under the St. Paul Policy.

43. The St. Paul Policy includes limits of $25,000,000 each occurrence.

44. The St. Paul Policy is excess to the Aspen Policy, the AIG Policy, as well as other

underlying insurance. Based on information and belief Marquee, Cosmopolitan, Aspen and AIG

agreed that all policies issued to Marquee, to which Cosmopolitan is an additional insured, shall be

primary to any insurance issued directly to Cosmopolitan, and other Cosmopolitan policies,

including the St. Paul Policy, shall be excess of, and not contribute towards the Marquee

purchased policies, i.e. the Aspen Policy and AIG Policy. In other words, with regard to the

Underlying Action, the Aspen Policy provides primary coverage for Cosmopolitan, the AIG

Policy provides first level excess coverage for Cosmopolitan over the Aspen Policy and the St.

Paul Policy provides Cosmopolitan coverage that is excess to both the Aspen Policy and the AIG

Policy. The insurance available to Cosmopolitan for the Moradi claim was layered as follows:

45. During the Underlying Action Carrier Defendants were aware of: facts, evidence

and expert opinion supporting Moradi’s allegations that Marquee was liable for Moradi’s injuries;

facts and evidence supporting Moradi’s allegations that Marquee concealed and/or destroyed

evidence pertaining to the incident; facts, evidence and expert opinion supporting Moradi’s claim

that he sustained brain injury as a result of the beating; facts, evidence and expert opinion
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supporting Moradi’s lost wage claim for hundreds of millions of dollars; and Moradi’s legal

arguments, endorsed by court rulings, that imposed vicarious liability on Cosmopolitan for

Moradi’s injuries and damages caused solely by Marquee’s actions.

46. Upon information and belief, in addition to Carrier Defendants’ knowledge of facts,

evidence, expert opinions, and legal rulings demonstrating the potential and likelihood of an

adverse verdict and astronomical damages award against Cosmopolitan, the defense attorneys

hired by Carrier Defendants to jointly defend Marquee and Cosmopolitan provided legal opinions

to Defendant Carriers that Cosmopolitan faced liability exposure in the hundreds of millions of

dollars if the Underlying Action was tried and not settled. Specifically, by way of example, the

defense attorneys at one point opined and reported to the Carrier Defendants that the

compensatory damages exposure in the case was over $310,000,000, and including punitive

damages, the exposure was as high as $4,000,000,000.

47. Given the facts known by Carrier Defendants, and the liability and damages

assessments provided by the attorneys and/or consultants/experts Carrier Defendants hired to

defend Cosmopolitan, Carrier Defendants, in breach of their contractual obligations, and in bad

faith refused to settle the Underlying Action despite multiple reasonable pre-trial settlement

demands by Moradi at or within the Carrier Defendants’ available policy limits, which were only a

fraction of Cosmopolitan’s compensatory damages exposure, as predicted by Aspen’s and AIG’s

appointed defense attorneys.

48. On or around December 10, 2015, after the Underlying Action had been pending

for over a year and a half, Moradi served an Offer of Judgment for $1,500,000 pursuant to Nevada

Rule of Civil Procedure 68 and Nevada Revised Statute 17.115. Carrier Defendants let the Offer

of Judgment lapse without any counter-offer or further discussions regarding potential settlement.

49. At the time the Offer of Judgement was pending AIG took the position that it had

no obligation to respond to the Offer of Judgement because Aspen had not offered a $1,000,000

occurrence limit.

50. Subsequently, AIG has represented to the Court that AIG, as an excess carrier, had

an independent obligation to Marquee and Cosmopolitan to settle the claim regardless of whether
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a lower level insurer first offered its policy limit.

51. On November 2, 2016, almost a year after Moradi’s $1,500,000 Offer of

Judgement, Moradi made a settlement demand for $26,000,000 – the claimed limit of the Carrier

Defendants’ policies. Per the terms of the settlement demand, acceptance by the Carrier

Defendants would have resulted in global resolution of all claims against Marquee and

Cosmopolitan. Carrier Defendants rejected the November 2, 2016 settlement demand, and made

no counter-offers to Moradi.

52. Based on information and belief, in January 2017, Aspen authorized the one and

only pre-trial settlement offer by the defense, an Offer of Judgement in the amount of $500,000,

on behalf of both Marquee and Cosmopolitan. At the time of Aspen’s $500,000 offer, AIG

continued to take the position that it had no obligation to offer settlement dollars because Aspen

had not tendered its full policy limit. AIG’s position at that time is in contradiction to AIG’s

representation to this Court that insurers possess an independent settlement obligation regardless

of what other insurers may or may not do.

53. On March 9, 2017, Moradi made another settlement demand for $26,000,000 – the

claimed limit of the Carrier Defendants’ policies. Per the terms of the settlement demand,

acceptance by the Carrier Defendants would have resulted in global resolution of all claims against

both Marquee and Cosmopolitan. A copy of Moradi’s pre-trial settlement demand dated March 9,

2017, is attached hereto as Exhibit B. Based on information and belief, in response to Moradi’s

March 9, 2017 settlement demand, Marquee wrote to Aspen’s and AIG’s appointed defense

counsel for Cosmopolitan demanding that the Underlying Action be settled within the Carrier

Defendants’ policy limits. Carrier Defendants rejected the March 9, 2017 settlement demand, and

made no counter offer to Moradi.

54. On or around March 20, 2017, the jury trial commenced.

55. Based on information and belief, on or around March 21, 2017, after trial began

and after defending Cosmopolitan and Marquee through a single conflicted law firm throughout

the case without raising any coverage issues, AIG issued a reservation of rights letter to

Cosmopolitan for the Underlying Action.
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56. In the present action AIG has represented to this Court that the AIG Policy does not

cover false imprisonment, assault or battery or Cosmopolitan’s independent negligence.

57. Upon information and belief, during the pendency of the jury trial, Carrier

Defendants made a single global settlement offer to Moradi. On or around April 21, 2017, shortly

before closing arguments, Carrier Defendants offered a mere $1,000,000 to resolve the liability on

behalf of both Marquee and Cosmopolitan.

58. Based on information and belief, coverage counsel for Cosmopolitan responded to

AIG’s March 21, 2017 reservation of rights letter as improper. In rejecting AIG’s late reservation,

coverage counsel for Cosmopolitan pointed out that all pre-trial reports indicated that

Cosmopolitan’s exposure was well in excess of the Aspen Policy limits, Moradi submitted

evidence at trial well in excess of Aspen’s policy limit, Aspen tendered its policy limits on March

8, 2017, and in response to the March 9, 2017 demand by Moradi, Cosmopolitan demanded AIG

settle the action within its limits, which demand AIG completely ignored without response to

Cosmopolitan. Coverage counsel for Cosmopolitan complained that AIG was not communicating

with Cosmopolitan and instructed AIG that due to its improper conduct, AIG would be liable for

all of Cosmopolitan’s liability, if any, regardless of policy limits.

59. Based on information and belief, the Carrier Defendants made multiple

misrepresentations and breached their obligations related to the coverage provided Cosmopolitan

for the Underlying Action under their respective polices. Carrier Defendants’ misrepresented and

breached their obligations to make policy limits available by denying that they had a duty to

accept offers to settle within their policy limits. Carrier Defendants’ never disclosed that there

was a potential conflict of interest between Cosmopolitan and Marquee due to Marquee’s

indemnity obligation. AIG never disclosed that there was a conflict of interest between

Cosmopolitan and AIG because the law firm AIG appointed was also AIG’s coverage counsel.

AIG never disclosed that an actual conflict of interest existed between itself and Cosmopolitan

given AIG’s new assertion, made for the first time in its motion to dismiss St. Paul’s original

complaint, that Cosmopolitan was not covered for its independent negligence, assault, battery and

false imprisonment under the AIG Policy, thereby intentionally withholding from Cosmopolitan
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its right to independent counsel.

60. On April 26, 2017, the jury in the Underlying Action rendered a compensatory

damages verdict against Marquee and Cosmopolitan for $160,500,000. A copy of the special jury

verdict form filed in the Underlying Action is attached hereto as Exhibit C. Per the verdict, the

jury found in favor of Moradi on his claims for assault, battery, false imprisonment, and

negligence. Per the verdict, the jury awarded Moradi $23,000,000 in past loss of earnings/earning

capacity, $79,500,000 in future loss of earnings/earning capacity, $20,000,000 in past pain,

suffering, anguish and disability, and $38,000,000 in future pain, suffering, anguish and disability.

Per court order, Marquee and Cosmopolitan were each jointly and severally liable for the

$160,500,000 verdict.

61. In addition to Carrier Defendants’ unreasonable and bad faith failure to accept

Moradi’s reasonable pre-trial settlement demands within the claimed combined policy limits, and

their failure to communicate with their insured, Cosmopolitan, regarding settlement negotiations,

Carrier Defendants also failed to communicate with St. Paul, as a high level excess carrier for

Cosmopolitan, regarding offers, settlement negotiations and the facts pertaining to the Underlying

Action.

62. Soon after St. Paul first received notice of the Underlying Action on February 13,

2017, St. Paul sent correspondence on multiple occasions to AIG requesting information

pertaining to the Underlying Action and settlement negotiations in the Underlying Action. AIG

ignored and/or delayed responding to St. Paul’s reasonable requests for information.

63. Despite knowledge of St. Paul’s requests for information, Carrier Defendants did

not report to St. Paul that Moradi had made a settlement demand on March 9, 2017 for the Carrier

Defendants’ combined claimed limit of $26,000,000.

64. St. Paul first learned of the March 9, 2017 settlement demand after the demand had

expired and trial had commenced.

65. On or around March 29, 2017, St. Paul sent AIG (which at that point was the lead

decision-maker among the Carrier Defendants regarding the settlement of the Underlying Action)

a letter confirming that Carrier Defendants had previously rejected the pre-trial $26,000,000
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settlement demand. In that letter, St. Paul demanded that AIG take all reasonable and necessary

steps to settle the case on behalf of Cosmopolitan for the Carrier Defendants’ combined claimed

policy limit of $26,000,000.

66. On April 28, 2017, two days after the jury delivered its $160,500,000

compensatory damages verdict, and during the punitive damages phase of the trial, Moradi made a

demand to Marquee and Cosmopolitan for $ .

67. In response to the April 28, 2017 settlement demand, Aspen re-tendered its claimed

$ on Marquee’s behalf.

68. Finally, in the face of a $160,500,000 compensatory damages jury verdict, AIG

tendered a $ towards the settlement demand on Marquee’s behalf. AIG took the

position that it had no further obligation to Cosmopolitan. At that point, despite having complete

control of defense and settlement negotiations, and letting all prior settlement demands expire,

AIG represented to St. Paul that it should pay to settle on behalf of Cosmopolitan and that St. Paul

could reserve its right to seek reimbursement against AIG.

69. The primary carrier for Cosmopolitan only, Zurich American Insurance Company,

tendered towards the settlement demand.

70. In light of AIG’s previous unreasonable and bad faith failure to settle and/or

attempt to settle, upon Moradi’s issuance the $ settlement demand, St. Paul sent

correspondence to AIG demanding that it satisfy the full demand. AIG again refused, in further

breach of its obligations owed under the AIG Policy and at law. Therefore, and despite Carrier

Defendants’ unreasonable and bad faith failure to settle the case at or within the claimed policy

limits of $26,000,000, and given the $160,500,000 jury verdict, St. Paul tendered

to consummate the settlement of Underlying Action, caused by the Carrier Defendants

breach of their duty to settle.

71. St. Paul’s $ contribution to the settlement of the Underlying Action was

made pursuant to a full and complete reservation of rights, including, but not limited to the right to

seek reimbursement of the $ settlement payment from Carrier Defendants and/or

Marquee.
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Subrogation –Breach Of The Duty To Settle
(Against Aspen Only)

72. St. Paul incorporates herein by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully

set forth.

73. At all relevant times, Aspen had a duty to its insured Cosmopolitan to comply with

the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, which is implied under all contracts, including

insurance contracts.

74. Included in the implied covenant are duties imposed on Aspen with respect to

settling or attempting to settle the Underlying Action on behalf of Cosmopolitan. With respect to

this duty to settle, Aspen was obligated to: give the interests of Cosmopolitan at least as much

consideration as it gave its own interests; and act as a prudent insurer in accepting offers to settle

without considering policy limits.

75. As part of its duty to settle, Aspen had a duty in the Underlying Action to accept a

reasonable settlement demand within its policy limits so as not to expose Cosmopolitan to a jury

verdict in excess of the Aspen limits. Breach of the duty to settle makes Aspen liable for all

damages imposed against Cosmopolitan, both within, and in excess of Aspen’s policy limits.

76. Aspen breached the duty to settle by refusing to settle the Underlying Action

despite a reasonable $1,500,000 pre-trial Offer of Judgement by Moradi, which was within

Aspen’s available policy limits. Aspen further breached its duty to settle by failing to tender its

limits to AIG in response to Moradi’s numerous settlement demands. The defense counsels’

compensatory damages liability assessment of $310,000,000 was over 200 times Moradi’s

$1,500,000 Offer of Judgement, and twelve times Moradi’s settlement demand of $26,000,000.

The ultimate compensatory damages jury verdict of $160,500,000 was more than 100 times the

amount of Moradi’s $1,500,000 Offer of Judgement, and six times Moradi’s settlement demand of

$26,000,000.

77. Aspen further breached the duty to settle by failing to attempt settlement of the

Underlying Action up until the time it tendered its limits to AIG for settlement purposes, nearly
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two years after the commencement of the Underlying Action.

78. Aspen’s breach of the duty to settle at or within the available Aspen Policy limits is

especially actionable considering, among other things: the extent of damages recoverable

(estimated to be no less than $310,000,000); the extent of Cosmopolitan’s exposure (estimated to

be no less than $310,000,000); the probability of Cosmopolitan’s liability; Aspen’s lack of

diligence in investigating the claims; the failure of Aspen to provide a conflict free defense; and

the failure of Aspen to provide information relating to Moradi’s claims and settlement negotiations

in the Underlying Action.

79. As a direct result of Aspen’s breach of the duty to settle, the Underlying Action

went to trial resulting in a $160,500,000 compensatory damages verdict against Cosmopolitan, for

which Aspen was completely liable due to its breach of the duty to settle but which Aspen refused

to recognize.

80. Unlike Aspen, St. Paul did not breach its obligations to Cosmopolitan in connection

with the Underlying Action, as Cosmopolitan’s coverage under the St. Paul Policy did not apply

until, at a minimum, the Aspen Policy (and AIG Policy) exhausted. Instead, when Aspen’s breach

of the duty to settle resulted in the $160,500,000 compensatory damages verdict against

Cosmopolitan, and the subsequent $ settlement demand by Moradi, all of which should

have been paid by Aspen, St. Paul agreed to contribute to resolve the case,

reserving its right to pursue Aspen (and AIG) for the $ for their breach of the duty to

settle.

81. As a result, St. Paul, Cosmopolitan’s high-level excess carrier above both Aspen

and AIG, sits in a position of superior equity to the Aspen, and St. Paul is subrogated under its

policy, by law and principles of equity to the rights of Cosmopolitan for claims against Aspen for

breach of the duty to settle.

82. As a result of Aspen’s breach of the duty to settle, St. Paul was forced to, and

without acting as a volunteer, pay on behalf of the insured, Cosmopolitan, to

satisfy the post-verdict $ settlement demand and consummate settlement of the

Underlying Action. St. Paul, therefore, has been damaged in the liquidated sum of $ .
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83. Under the express terms of the St. Paul Policy and principles of subrogation, having

made the settlement payment on behalf of Cosmopolitan, St. Paul steps into Cosmopolitan’s

shoes, and succeeds to all of Cosmopolitan’s rights of recovery against the Aspen. It is just and

fair to have Aspen reimburse St. Paul’s damages in the amount of $ , as it was Aspen’s

improper conduct, not that of St. Paul, that resulted in the $160,500,000 verdict against

Cosmopolitan, and subsequent $ settlement demand, and equity requires Aspen to

therefore bear the burden of its improper conduct and pay the entire settlement.

WHEREFORE, St. Paul prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Subrogation –Breach Of The Duty To Settle
(Against AIG Only)

84. St. Paul incorporates herein by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully

set forth.

85. At all relevant times, AIG had a duty to its insured Cosmopolitan to comply with

the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, which is implied under all contracts, including

insurance contracts.

86. Included in the implied covenant are duties imposed on AIG with respect to settling

or attempting to settle the Underlying Action on behalf of Cosmopolitan. With respect to this duty

to settle, AIG was obligated to: give the interests of Cosmopolitan at least as much consideration

as it gave its own interests; and act as a prudent insurer in accepting offers to settle without

considering policy limits.

87. As part of its duty to settle, AIG had a duty in the Underlying Action to accept a

reasonable settlement demand within its policy limits so as not to expose Cosmopolitan to a jury

verdict in excess of the AIG Policy limits. Breach of the duty to settle makes AIG liable for all

damages imposed against Cosmopolitan, both within, and in excess of the AIG policy limits.

88. AIG breached the duty to settle by refusing to settle the Underlying Action despite

multiple reasonable pre-trial settlement demands by Moradi at or within AIG’s policy limits.

Specifically, AIG failed to pay the $1,500,000 pre-trial Offer of Judgement by Moradi while

REDACTED

REDACTED
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representing to this Court that it had an independent duty to settle regardless of whether a lower

level insurer such as Aspen tendered its policy limit. Further, based on information and belief,

AIG breached its duty to settle by failing to request Aspen tender its policy limits and accept

Moradi’s various settlement demands. The defense counsels’ compensatory damages liability

assessment of $310,000,000 was almost twelve times the amount of the settlement demands for

$26,000,000. The ultimate compensatory damages jury verdict was more than six times the

amount of the settlement demands for $26,000,000.

89. AIG further breached the duty to settle by failing to attempt settlement of the

Underlying Action with Moradi either before or during trial for an amount at or within the AIG

policy limits.

90. AIG’s breach of the duty to settle is especially actionable considering, among other

things: the extent of damages recoverable (estimated to be no less than $310,000,000); the extent

of Cosmopolitan’s exposure (estimated to be no less than $310,000,000); the probability of

Cosmopolitan’s liability; AIG’s lack of diligence in investigating the claims; the failure of AIG to

provide a conflict free defense; and the failure of AIG to provide information relating to Moradi’s

claims and settlement negotiations in the Underlying Action.

91. As a direct result of AIG’s breach of the duty to settle, the Underlying Action went

to trial resulting in a $160,500,000 compensatory damages verdict against Cosmopolitan, for

which AIG was completely liable due to its breach of the duty to settle but which AIG refused to

recognize.

92. Unlike AIG, St. Paul did not breach its obligations to Cosmopolitan in connection

with the Underlying Action, as Cosmopolitan’s coverage under the St. Paul Policy did not apply

until, at a minimum, the AIG Policy (and Aspen Policy) exhausted. Instead, when AIG’s breach

of its duty to settle resulted in the $160,500,000 compensatory damages verdict against

Cosmopolitan, and the subsequent $ settlement demand by Moradi, all of which should

have been paid by AIG, St. Paul agreed to contribute to resolve the case, reserving

its right to pursue AIG for the $ for its breach of the duty to settle.

93. As a result, St. Paul, Cosmopolitan’s high-level excess carrier, sits in a position of
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superior equity to AIG, and St. Paul is subrogated under its policy, by law and principles of equity

to the rights of Cosmopolitan for claims against AIG for breach of the duty to settle.

94. As a result of AIG’s breach of the duty to settle, St. Paul was forced to, and without

acting as a volunteer, pay on behalf of the insured, Cosmopolitan, to satisfy

the post-verdict $ settlement demand and consummate settlement of the Underlying

Action. St. Paul, therefore, has been damaged in the liquidated sum of $ .

95. Under the express terms of the St. Paul Policy and principles of subrogation, having

made the settlement payment on behalf of Cosmopolitan, St. Paul steps into Cosmopolitan’s

shoes, and succeeds to all of Cosmopolitan’s rights of recovery against the AIG. It is just and fair

to have AIG reimburse St. Paul’s damages in the amount of $ , as it was AIG’s

improper conduct, not that of St. Paul, that resulted in the $160,500,000 verdict against

Cosmopolitan, and subsequent $ settlement demand, and equity requires AIG should

therefore bear the burden of its improper conduct and pay the entire settlement.

WHEREFORE, St. Paul prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Subrogation -- Breach of The Aspen Insurance Contract
(Against Aspen Only)

96. St. Paul incorporates herein by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully

set forth.

97. Cosmopolitan tendered the Underlying Action to Aspen for defense and indemnity

under the Aspen Policy. Aspen breached its obligations to Cosmopolitan under the Aspen Policy

by, among other things, failing to provide a conflict-free defense, favoring the interests of

Marquee over Cosmopolitan’s interests, failing to pay any amount on Cosmopolitan’s behalf

toward the $ settlement, and by failing to pay all available limits under the Aspen

Policy to resolve Cosmopolitan’s liability when it had the opportunity.

98. Upon information and belief, Cosmopolitan performed all obligations owing under

the Aspen Policy in connection with its tender of defense and indemnity, and Cosmopolitan

satisfied all relevant conditions precedent in connection therewith.
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99. As a direct and proximate result of Aspen’s breach of its obligations under the

Aspen Policy as alleged herein, a compensatory damages verdict in the amount of $160,500,000

was entered against Cosmopolitan in the Underlying Action.

100. As a direct and proximate result of Aspen’s breach of its obligations under the

Aspen Policy as alleged herein, St. Paul was forced to, and without acting as a volunteer, pay its

$ limit on behalf of the insured, Cosmopolitan, to satisfy the post-verdict $

settlement demand and consummate settlement of the Underlying Action, reserving its right to

pursue Aspen for the $ due to Aspen’s breach of contract. St. Paul, therefore, has been

damaged in the liquidated sum of $ .

101. Unlike Aspen, St. Paul did not breach its obligations to Cosmopolitan under the St.

Paul Policy in connection with the Underlying Action, as Cosmopolitan’s coverage under the St.

Paul Policy did not apply until the Aspen Policy (and AIG Policy) exhausted. As a result, St.

Paul, Cosmopolitan’s high-level excess carrier, sits in a position of superior equity to Aspen.

102. Under the express terms of the St. Paul Policy and principles of subrogation, having

made the settlement payment on behalf of Cosmopolitan, St. Paul steps into Cosmopolitan’s

shoes, and succeeds to all of Cosmopolitan’s rights of recovery against Aspen for breach of

contract.

103. It is just and fair to have Aspen reimburse St. Paul damages in the amount of

$ , as it was Aspen’s breach of its obligations under the Aspen Policy, not that of St.

Paul, that resulted in the $160,500,000 verdict against Cosmopolitan, and subsequent $

settlement demand, and equity requires Aspen should therefore bear the burden of its improper

conduct and reimburse St. Paul for its $ contribution to the post-verdict $

settlement.

WHEREFORE, St. Paul prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Subrogation -- Breach of The AIG Insurance Contract
(Against AIG Only)

104. St. Paul incorporates herein by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully
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set forth.

105. Cosmopolitan tendered the Underlying Action to AIG for defense and indemnity

under the AIG Policy. AIG breached its obligations to Cosmopolitan under the AIG Policy by,

among other things, failing to provide a conflict-free defense, favoring the interests of Marquee

over Cosmopolitan’s interests, failing to pay all available limits under the AIG Policy to resolve

Cosmopolitan’s liability when it had the opportunity, and failing to pay any amount on

Cosmopolitan’s behalf toward the $ settlement.

106. Upon information and belief, Cosmopolitan performed all obligations owing under

the AIG Policy in connection with its tender of defense and indemnity, and Cosmopolitan satisfied

all relevant conditions precedent in connection therewith.

107. As a direct and proximate result of AIG’s breach of its obligations under the AIG

Policy as alleged herein, a compensatory damages verdict in the amount of $160,500,000 was

entered against Cosmopolitan in the Underlying Action.

108. As a direct and proximate result of AIG’s breach of its obligations under the AIG

Policy as alleged herein, St. Paul was forced to, and without acting as a volunteer, pay its

$ limit on behalf of the insured, Cosmopolitan, to satisfy the post-verdict $

settlement demand and consummate settlement of the Underlying Action, reserving its right to

pursue AIG for the $ due to AIG’s breach of contract. St. Paul, therefore, has been

damaged in the liquidated sum of $ .

109. Unlike AIG, St. Paul did not breach its obligations to Cosmopolitan under the St.

Paul Policy in connection with the Underlying Action, as Cosmopolitan’s coverage under the St.

Paul Policy did not apply until the AIG Policy (and Aspen Policy) exhausted. As a result, St.

Paul, Cosmopolitan’s high-level excess carrier, sits in a position of superior equity to AIG.

110. Under the express terms of the St. Paul Policy and principles of subrogation, having

made the settlement payment on behalf of Cosmopolitan, St. Paul steps into Cosmopolitan’s

shoes, and succeeds to all of Cosmopolitan’s rights of recovery against AIG for breach of contract.

111. It is just and fair to have AIG reimburse St. Paul damages in the amount of

$ , as it was AIG’s breach of its obligations under the AIG Policy, not that of St. Paul,
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that resulted in the $160,500,000 verdict against Cosmopolitan, and subsequent $

settlement demand, and equity requires AIG should therefore bear the burden of its improper

conduct and reimburse St. Paul for its $ contribution to the post-verdict $

settlement.

WHEREFORE, St. Paul prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Statutory Subrogation – Contribution Per NRS § 17.225
(Against Marquee Only)

112. St. Paul incorporates herein by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully

set forth.

113. Per NRS § 17.275, St. Paul has an existing statutory subrogation right against

Marquee for contribution per NRS § 17.225 for a share of the $ settlement payment

made by St. Paul in the Underlying Action.

114. St. Paul’s $ payment towards the post-verdict $ settlement

discharged Cosmopolitan’s liability in the Underlying Action and also discharged any obligation

St. Paul had as an insurer for Cosmopolitan.

115. Per court order, Cosmopolitan and Marquee were jointly and severally liable for the

$160,500,000 jury verdict in the Underlying Action.

116. The $ post-verdict settlement jointly extinguished the liability of

Marquee and Cosmopolitan.

117. Moradi’s injuries and damages were caused solely by Marquee’s actions and

unreasonable conduct.

118. Moradi’s injuries and damages were not caused by any affirmative actions or

unreasonable conduct on the part of Cosmopolitan. Rather, per court order, Cosmopolitan was

held merely vicariously liable for Marquee’s actions and Moradi’s resulting damages.

119. St. Paul’s $ payment on behalf of Cosmopolitan towards the settlement

of the Underlying Action was in excess of Cosmopolitan’s equitable share of the common liability

of Marquee and Cosmopolitan.
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120. Per NRS §§ 17.225 and 12.275, Marquee is liable to St. Paul in contribution for all

sums paid by St. Paul towards the settlement of the Underlying Action which were in excess of

Cosmopolitan’s equitable share of the common liability.

WHEREFORE, St. Paul prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Subrogation – Express Indemnity
(Against Marquee Only)

121. St. Paul incorporates herein by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully

set forth.

122. Per written agreement, Marquee was obligated to indemnify, hold harmless and

defend Cosmopolitan for Moradi’s claims in the Underlying Action.

123. Upon information and belief, Cosmopolitan performed all conditions giving rise to

Marquee’s contractual obligation to indemnify Cosmopolitan in connection to the Underlying

Action. Alternatively, Cosmopolitan has been excused from performing any conditions giving

rise to Marquee’s contractual obligation to indemnify Cosmopolitan in connection with the

Underlying Action.

124. Upon information and belief, Cosmopolitan tendered the Underlying Action to

Marquee for indemnification per written agreement.

125. Based on information and belief, Marquee accepted Cosmopolitan’s tender for

indemnification per written agreement without reservation through its insurers, but did not provide

indemnification to Cosmopolitan for the claims asserted against Cosmopolitan in the Underlying

Action.

126. St. Paul, as an insurer for Cosmopolitan, is subrogated by its policy, law and

principles of equity to the rights of Cosmopolitan for claims against Marquee for express

indemnification.

127. As a result of Marquee’s failure to provide express indemnification, St. Paul was

forced to, and without acting as a volunteer, pay on behalf of Cosmopolitan

to satisfy the post-verdict $ settlement demand and consummate settlement of the
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Underlying Action. St. Paul, therefore, has been damaged in the liquidated amount of

$ .

128. Marquee is liable to St. Paul, in subrogation for express indemnification, and

justice requires that Marquee reimburse St. Paul’s damages in the amount of $ .

129. Per the terms of the written agreement, Marquee is also liable to St. Paul for its

attorney fees in prosecuting this action and enforcing the terms of the express indemnity

agreement.

WHEREFORE, St. Paul prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Equitable Estoppel
(Against Carrier Defendants Only)

130. St. Paul incorporates herein by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully

set forth.

131. In its motion to dismiss St. Paul’s original complaint, AIG asserted for the first

time that it is a “co-excess” carrier with St. Paul, that the AIG Policy, which is specifically excess

to the Aspen Policy, does not apply before Cosmopolitan’s excess policy with St. Paul as alleged

herein. Representing that it has an independent duty owed to Cosmopolitan in relation to the

Underlying Action, AIG now asserts that St. Paul had the same independent duty as AIG to settle

the Underlying Action. AIG’s “co-excess” assertion is not only inconsistent with the parties’

agreement regarding the priority of coverage between Marquee’s policies and Cosmopolitan’s

policies, as alleged herein, it is also inconsistent with the Carrier Defendants’ own representations.

132. Throughout the Underlying Action, the Carrier Defendants consistently represented

through both words and actions that the coverage they provided Cosmopolitan as both an

additional insured and as Marquee’s contractual indemnitee was primary to Cosmopolitan’s direct

coverage under Cosmopolitan’s own policies, including the St. Paul Policy, and therefore Carrier

Defendants were responsible for defending and resolving the Underlying Action. Specifically:

a. By appointing joint counsel the Carrier Defendants affirmed Marquee’s

acceptance of Cosmopolitan’s indemnity tender, and agreed to pay all sums incurred by
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Cosmopolitan for both defense and indemnity regardless of policy limits, since the appointment of

joint counsel foreclosed Cosmopolitan’s ability to bring a cross-complaint against Marquee, the

only actual wrongdoer. Based on information and belief, Carrier Defendants appointed joint

counsel because they understood that the entire loss was theirs to defend and resolve on behalf of

both Marquee and Cosmopolitan.

b. Throughout the Underlying Action Carrier Defendants controlled the

defense and all settlement negotiations on behalf of Marquee and Cosmopolitan. Based on

information and belief, none of Cosmopolitan’s direct insurers were given notice of the loss until

late in February 2017, even though the case had been pending since 2014, trial was set for March

2017, and had been previously set for June 27, 2016. St. Paul was not notified of the Underlying

Action until on or about February 13, 2017. Trial began on March 20, 2017, but St. Paul was not

advised of the trial date and did not learn of the trial until three days after trial started, on March

23, 2017.

c. The Carrier Defendants never requested Cosmopolitan’s direct carriers,

including St. Paul, participate in the defense of the Underlying Action or settlement negotiations.

In fact, once given notice of the Underlying Action by Cosmopolitan, Cosmopolitan’s direct

carriers reached out to the Carrier Defendants numerous times attempting to obtain information

regarding the Underlying Action and the Carrier Defendants’ plans for resolving it. Based on

information and belief, Carrier Defendants viewed St. Paul’s and Cosmopolitan’s other direct

carriers’ communications and requests for information as annoying and unnecessary, given the

Carrier Defendants’ primary responsibility for the defense and resolution the Underlying Action.

As a result, during trial, the Carrier Defendants, specifically AIG who was the lead decision maker

on settlement negotiations by that time, often totally ignored communications from Cosmopolitan

and Cosmopolitan’s direct carriers, including St. Paul, regarding the status of settlement

negotiations, and when AIG did respond, it was in a dismissive and perfunctory manner. AIG

repeatedly represented to St. Paul that AIG was seeking to settle the Underlying Action on behalf

of both Marquee and Cosmopolitan consistent with its accepted obligations.

133. Based on information and belief, during the Underlying Action, the Carrier
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Defendants were aware Cosmopolitan had its own direct insurance, and were provided copies of

Cosmopolitan’s direct insurance policies, including the St. Paul Policy.

134. As alleged herein, St. Paul contends that it is a high level excess carrier and its

coverage to Cosmopolitan for the Underlying Action did not apply until after exhaustion of the

Aspen Policy and AIG Policy, which is consistent with the words and actions of the Carrier

Defendants during the Underlying Action. During the Underlying Action, St. Paul was unaware

that AIG, or Aspen, intended to contradict its representations regarding the priority of Marquee’s

direct insurance to that of Cosmopolitan. Instead, St. Paul, and Cosmopolitan’s other direct

carriers, relied on the Carrier Defendants’ representations that they were primarily responsible for

defending and resolving the Underlying Action on behalf of both Marquee and Cosmopolitan. As

a result, St. Paul, and Cosmopolitan’s other direct carriers, did not participate in the defense or

settlement negotiations on behalf of Cosmopolitan in the Underlying Action. As alleged above,

the Carrier Defendants’ unreasonable failure to settle the Underlying Action resulted in a verdict

against Cosmopolitan (and Marquee) in the amount of $160,500,000, and St. Paul’s eventual

contribution of $ on behalf of the insured, Cosmopolitan, towards a post-verdict

settlement.

135. Equity requires that the Carrier Defendants be bound by their words and actions in

the Underlying Action, that they be precluded from asserting now, for the first time, that 1) their

policies were not primarily responsible for the defense and resolution of the Underlying Action,

and 2) St. Paul, a non-defending carrier, had the same obligation to resolve the Underlying Action

as the Carrier Defendants. Instead, it is just and fair that Carrier Defendants individually and/or

collectively reimburse St. Paul’s damages in the amount of $ , as it was the Carrier

Defendants’ improper conduct, not that of St. Paul, that resulted in the $160,500,000 verdict

against Cosmopolitan, and subsequent $ settlement demand.

WHEREFORE, St. Paul prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /
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EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Equitable Contribution
(Against AIG Only)

136. St. Paul incorporates herein by reference all preceding paragraphs as though fully

set forth.

137. As alleged herein, St. Paul contends that it is a high level excess carrier for

Cosmopolitan, and that the St. Paul Policy responds to the Underlying Action only after

exhaustion of the coverages provided by Aspen, the primary carrier, and AIG, the first level excess

carrier, under their respective policies. As alleged above, AIG now asserts, for the first time, that

it is a “co-excess” carrier with St. Paul, that the AIG Policy, which is specifically excess to the

Aspen Policy, does not apply before Cosmopolitan’s excess policy with St. Paul as alleged herein.

While St. Paul disputes AIG’s contention, as alleged herein, in light of AIG’s new assertions, St.

Paul pleads this cause of action for contribution in the alternative to its Second Cause of Action

for Subrogation -- Breach of the Duty to Settle as against AIG only, and its Fourth Cause of

Action for Subrogation -- Breach of the AIG Insurance Contract as against AIG only.

138. In contributing to the settlement of the Underlying Action on behalf of

Cosmopolitan, St. Paul’s insured, St. Paul incurred amounts in excess of its equitable share. St.

Paul contributed $ on Cosmopolitan’s behalf. AIG contributed nothing on

Cosmopolitan’s behalf.

139. AIG failed to contribute its fair and equitable share toward the settlement of the

Underlying Action on behalf of Cosmopolitan, also AIG’s insured.

140. The amount due from AIG for its fair and equitable share of the settlement of the

Underlying Action on behalf of Cosmopolitan will be according to proof at trial.

141. AIG is obligated under the principals of equity to reimburse St. Paul for the

settlement amounts St. Paul inequitably incurred in settlement of the Underlying Action on behalf

of Cosmopolitan.

WHEREFORE, St. Paul prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

/ / /
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

1. On the First and Third Causes of Action, for damages against Aspen in the amount of

$ .

2. On the Second and Fourth Causes of Action, for damages against AIG in the amount

of $ .

3. On the Fifth Cause of Action, for damages against Marquee for all portions of St.

Paul’s $ settlement payment which is in excess of Cosmopolitan’s equitable share of

the liability in the Underlying Action.

4. On the Sixth Cause of Action, for damages against Marquee in the amount of

$ .

5. On the Seventh Cause of Action, for damages against Carrier Defendants in the

amount of $ .

6. On the Eighth Cause of Action, for damages against AIG for all portions of St.

Paul’s $ settlement payment which is in excess of St. Paul’s equitable share of the

liability in the Underlying Action.

7. For attorney’s fees.

8. For costs of suit.

9. For pre-judgment interest.

10. For such whatever other relief this Court deems proper.

Dated: April 23, 2018 MORALES FIERRO & REEVES

By: /s/ Ramiro Morales
Ramiro Morales [Bar No. 007101]
William Reeves [Bar No. 008235]
Marc Derewetzky [Bar No. 006619]
Attorneys for Plaintiff
600 So. Tonopah Dr., Suite 300
Las Vegas, NV 89106
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